
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – June 20, 2022              1 
 

 
 
 
 

        
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, June 20, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
 

The Regular Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located 
at 200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631  

  
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:30PM to 8:00PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3. Roll Call  
 

4. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
   

5. Approval of Agenda 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or public may ask 
that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for discussion. All 
such requests will be granted.  
 
A. Regular Council Minutes – June 6, 2022 
B. Vendor’s List $44,290.92 
C. Budget Amendments (Monday night)  

 
7. Unfinished Business  

D. River/High St  
  

8. New Business 
E. Resolution 2022-09 -Poverty Exemption  
F. MMRMA & Accident Fund Renewal Policy 
G. Army Static Display Equipment 
H. Truck Box Quote  

 
9. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 

  I.  Accounts Payable Report (6/7/2022 – 6/20/2022)  
 J.  Payroll Reports (6/7/2022 – 6/20/2022)  

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager: Pepper Lockhart 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St.  
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 
 
 
 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – June 20, 2022              2 
 

 K. Summary of Funds – March 2022 
 L.  Summary of Funds – April 2022 
 

10.  City Attorney Report/Comment  
 

11.  City Clerk Report/Comment 
 
12.  City Manager Report/Comment   

 M. FYI- Master Plan proposal from Williams & Works 
 

13.  Finance Director Report/Comment 
 

14.  Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
 N. Monthly Report – May 2022 
 

15.  Police Department Report/Comment  
 O. Monthly Report – May 2022  
 

16.  City Assessor  
 

17.  Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
 P. DDA Monthly Packet – June 14, 2022 
 

18.  Fire Department  
 Q. Fired Department Minutes – May 10, 2022 
 

19.  Housing Commission 
 

20.  Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

21.  Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 6.6.2022 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

June 6, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
Community Room at the Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

Mayor Emerick called the meeting to order at 8:00pm, then led the assembly in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Chris Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga 
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Finance Director/Treasurer Jennie Duncan, 
Director of Public Works Dustin Moma, City Attorney James White, Chief of Police John Beam 
Jr., Downtown Development Authority Director Todd Bruggema, City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests: Travis Douglas, Brian Fortune, Evart Area Fire Chief Shane Helmer 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda with the following changes: replace Item I 
(vacation time) with fireworks discussion and add River Street repaving as Item K1.  Support by            
Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Regular Council Minutes – May 16, 2022  
B. Vendor’s List $54,314.73   
C.  Budget Amendments 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Support by Mayor 
Emerick. Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business: none 
 
New Business 
D.  Resolution 2022-10 Appointing City Manager as Assistant Airport Manager 
Ms. Lockhart noted that the city has always had an assistant airport manager and asked that 
council allow her to serve in the position.  Motion by Mr. Elliott to approve Resolution 2022-10 
appointing City Manager Pepper Lockhart as assistant airport manager.  Support by Mr. 
Hildebrand.  Motion passed with a roll call vote: Hildebrand, Szeliga, Duffy, Elliott and Emerick 
in favor; none opposed. 
E.  Appointment to Planning Commission  
Karen Higgins has resigned from the Planning Commission and her term expires in 2023.  Todd 
Bruggema has agreed to fill the remainder of this term.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to appoint Mr. 
Bruggema to the Planning Commission for the remainder of the Higgins term which expires in 
2023.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in favor. 
F.  T-Mobile Grant 
Ms. Lockhart has been exploring grants to purchase new equipment for the skateboard park. 
She noted that this park is heavily used, and the current equipment had been in use for years 
before being donated to the city.  She would also like to add LED lighting to increase safety and 
hours of use for both the skate park and the ice rink.  The T-Mobile grant would cover the cost 
of the new equipment but not the cost of lighting.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to authorize Ms. 



2 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 6.6.2022 
 

Lockhart to submit a grant request to T-Mobile for new skate park equipment, with the 
understanding that the city will pay any additional cost for new lighting.  Support by Ms. Szeliga.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 
G.  Jefferson St. Engineering Services 
Ms. Lockhart and Mr. Moma asked council to consider whether to use OHM Engineering for the 
engineering study of Jefferson Street improvements or whether to put out a Request for 
Proposal (RFP). Mr. Moma noted that OHM is very familiar with the city’s infrastructure needs. 
Ms. Lockhart stated that the purchasing policy allows council to continue to work with 
established firms.  OHM is already doing the River Street project and the city may save money 
by using them for Jefferson.  The downside of bringing in a new firm is that they have no 
knowledge of Evart. Mr. Hildebrand suggested doing an RFP with a request for a timeline on the 
new firm getting up to speed.  Mr. Elliott recommended including a Request for Qualification 
(RFQ) with the RFP.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to publish an RFP/RFQ for engineering firms  
for quotes on an engineering study for Jefferson Street. Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed 
with all in favor. 
I.  Request for Proposal – Speed Radar Signs 
Chief Beam presented several quotes for digital speed signs and reminded council that 
speeding is prevalent throughout the city.  Reed City and Cadillac both use Elan signs and are 
pleased with the performance. Chief recommended that council approve the Elan bid. Motion by 
Mr. Hildebrand authorizing Chief Beam to accept the bid for speed signs from Elan. Support by 
Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
I.   Fireworks 
The Evart Area Chamber of Commerce has secured funding for a fireworks display on July 3.  
Lot 1 has reverted back to the city so parking is no longer an issue, and Chief Beam feels that 
he can adequately staff the event.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to authorize Ms. Lockhart to sign 
the fireworks contract. Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
J.  MDOT Use of Right of Way Performance Resolution 
Chief Beam advised council that MDOT has updated the form for requesting closures of US10. 
The city must submit a new form before requesting any closures. Motion by Mayor Emerick to 
designate the city manager and the Department of Public Works director as signers for US10 
road closure requests per the required MDOT resolution.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed 
with a roll call vote: Szeliga, Duffy, Elliott, Emerick, Hildebrand in favor; none opposed. 
K.  Request for Proposal for Engineering Services – US10 Project 
Mr. Moma noted that MDOT intends to mill and pave US10 from the western city limit to the 
eastern city limit in 2026.  MDOT has asked that the city coordinate any needed infrastructure 
work, and Mr. Moma stated the water lines near Ventra should be replaced while the road is 
being worked on.  MDOT requires that the city do their own engineering study and Mr. Moma 
asked if council wants to put out a Request for Proposal for the study or use OHM as permitted 
by city policy.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to publish a Request for Proposal/Request for 
Qualifications for the engineering study for infrastructure improvements along US10. Support by 
Mayor Emerick. Motion passed with all in favor.  
K1. River Street Milling and Paving 
At the request of council, Ms. Lockhart presented all the various options for repaving N. River 
Street that have been discussed.  Council had previously approved a 5” overlay from Jefferson 
to 7 Mile and chip and seal from Jefferson to US10.  No action taken; council will continue to 
discuss all options. 
 
Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
L.  Accounts Payable Report (5/17/2022 – 6/6/2022) 
M.  Payroll Reports (5/17/2022 – 6/6/2022) 
 



3 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 6.6.2022 
 

City Attorney Report/Comment 
The sale of the city surplus property on 7 Mile Road has been closed. Chris Elliott, owner of the 
Green Gold Diner was told he must pave the parking lot in order to bring it up to code.  He laid 
crushed limestone as a temporary solution and believes this is adequate, since there are a 
number of businesses with parking lots that are not paved.  He requested a letter stating that 
paving is not necessary. No action taken.  Mr. White will meet with the county building inspector 
on June 14 to discuss several proposed condemnations as the city must ensure that our code is 
in order and all procedures are properly followed.  Condemnation notices often wind up in court. 
Mr. Duffy asked if there was any action on the 7th Street demolition and the reports that 
construction debris was allowed to go into the river. Mr. White stated that EGLE has been 
notified of the issue.  The ballot proposal to appoint rather than elect city clerk is still stalled in 
the Attorney General’s office. 
City Clerk Report/Comment 
Applications for absentee ballots for the August primary and the November general elections 
have been sent out to all Evart voters currently on the permanent absentee voter list.  Ms. 
Fiebig has reviewed the ballot for August; the police millage is on it and the language is correct. 
City Manager Report/Comment: 
Ms. Lockhart continues to work with the school system on the Safe to Schools sidewalk 
initiative. She intends to apply for a grant from Blue Triton to install a recirculating system for the 
splash pad as we currently spend roughly $26,000/season on water.  She is working on some 
grants from Consumer Energy as well.  She thanked council for reopening the discussion on the 
N. River Road repaving project.  
Finance Director Report/Comment: 
Ms. Duncan will be attending more training as treasurer and will retrain as an election inspector.  
Summer taxes will be sent to the printers soon. 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment:  
Reith-Riley was scheduled to mill and pave 1st Street next week, but has experienced several 
rain delays on current project. They hope to start during the week of June 20. 
Police Department Report/Comment:  
Jesse Hyden is working on his application to Kirkland Academy and is currently on staff as code 
enforcement officer. The MMRMA check for camera reimbursement was received. Chief 
continues to work on installing the security cameras. He worked with the schools after the 
Uvalde shootings and he and Fire Chief Helmer will meet with staff there to update their threat 
plans. 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment:  
Mr. Bruggema gave a report on plans for the sesquicentennial celebration.  Posters with all 
events will be out soon.   
 
Citizens’ Comments: 
Todd Bruggema believes that due to high public usage of the Depot and grounds, the city 
should have an AED unit available there. 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in 
favor. The meeting was adjourned at 9:33pm. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 06/16/2022 03:18 PM
User: LISA
DB: City Of Evart

CHECK DATE FROM 06/07/2022 - 06/20/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

650.00 BAIRD, COTTER & BISHOP PC00153913275106/20/2022
728.34 CITY OF EVART00283913375106/20/2022

1,315.64 DEERE CREDIT, INC12003913475106/20/2022
347.18 DTE ENERGY05763913575106/20/2022

8,385.00 ELHORN ENGINEERING CO07613913675106/20/2022
67.75 FILE SAFE, INC10253913775106/20/2022

2,262.34 HACH COMPANY03953913875106/20/2022
235.08 HOMETOWN HARDWARE06773913975106/20/2022

V0.00 VOID06773914075106/20/2022
130.00 MILES, GREG21063914175106/20/2022
745.00 MORGAN COMPOSTING, INC.16133914275106/20/2022
33.32 PIONEER GROUP02553914375106/20/2022

10,501.96 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063914475106/20/2022
120.00 RESOURCE RENTAL CENTER11443914575106/20/2022

10,940.00 SANTA'S LIGHT CREW6213914675106/20/2022
321.03 SMITH LUMBER CO01293914775106/20/2022
174.89 SMITH LUMBER CO01293914875106/20/2022
187.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL15793914975106/20/2022
450.55 WILLIAMS & WORKS, INC.30053915075106/20/2022
306.58 XEROX CORPORATION18033915175106/20/2022

1,807.46 CONSUMERS ENERGY0024916(E)75106/20/2022
226.93 LINGO1043917(E)75106/20/2022
76.75 DUNCAN, JENNIFER1739918(A)75106/20/2022
65.52 FIEBIG, KATHY 1172919(A)75106/20/2022

2,319.82 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730920(A)75106/20/2022
1,882.43 TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES1600921(A)75106/20/2022

10.35 TUPPER, VICTORIA1145922(A)75106/20/2022

751 TOTALS:

44,290.92 Total of 26 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
44,290.92 Total of 27 Checks:



 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:   Pepper Lockhart, City Manager 
Date:  June 16, 2022 
Re:  River/High St Project 
 
For the Agenda of June 20, 2022 
______________________________________________________________________  
Background. At this time, you have chosen option 5A, plus chip/seal from Jefferson to 
US10.  I was requested to also get a cost breakdown for 3” and 5” for the entire project. 
This was brought back to the agenda at the meeting on June 6 asking for more information 
on what is beneath the road. OHM has not completed the borings yet. They will not bore 
on the stretch of road that was chosen only to chip/seal. Dustin will have more data on 
Monday on what he finds from Fridays findings for the current construction of the road. 
 
Issues & Questions Specified  
On June 9th we did the walkability study with the school and were able to include a couple 
engineers from MDOT. While they were here Todd was speaking with one of the 
engineers and we found out they are going to be doing two bridge projects on M66. They 
are going to re-route traffic down high/river street. After talking with the engineer a few 
times, we have discovered they will most likely help with 1 ½” of paving and some gravel 
from Jefferson to 7 mile. They were pleased to hear we may do this project before 2024 
that will coincide with the bridge project. Ms. Johnson has verified they will need to shut 
down M66 and use River/High St as the detour route.  
 
 
Recommendation 
My recommendation is to go with the 3” paving for the entire stretch. Then MDOT will 
add 1 ½” to the portion between Jefferson to 7 mile. This would give us a 4 ½” base 
from Jefferson to 7 mile where the road is in the worse condition. 
 
Attachments.  

1. Options 2 & 5A breakdowns along with the chip/seal cost 
2. Revision of 3” & 5” paving the whole project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

















          

 

 

CITY OF EVART 

RIVER ROAD PAVING OPTIONS -  3” vs 5” of HMA 

US-10 TO 7 MILE ROAD 

May 3, 2022 
 
 
 

 
1. OPTION #2 

a. Scope - Mill and resurface with 3” of asphalt. Misc. curb repair, ADA upgrades at existing 
sidewalk ramps. 

b. Cost Breakdown 
Construction  $550,000 
Engineering  $145,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $695,000 

 
2. OPTION #2B 

a. Scope - Mill and resurface with 5” of asphalt. Misc. curb repair, ADA upgrades at existing 
sidewalk ramps. 

b. Cost Breakdown 
Construction  $915,000 
Engineering  $180,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,095,000 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 



AGENDA REPORT 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Joyce & Council Members 
From:  Pepper Lockhart, City Manager 
Date:  June 16, 2022 
Re: 2022 Poverty Exemption Resolution  
 
For the Agenda of June 20, 2020 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Background. 
 
The original resolution was passed in December of 2020. We had our annual AMAR 
accessing audit last week and they would like us to change the resolution originally 
passed by omitting a partial sentence. The following wording would be omitted under 
the NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED SECTION, “unless the accessor and board 
of review determines there are substantial and compelling reasons why there should be 
a deviation from the policy and federal guidelines and these reasons are communicated 
in writing to the claimant.”  
 
 
Attachments. 

1. Poverty Exemption Resolution 2022-09 
 



 

CITY OF EVART 
Resolution 2022-09 

2022 POVERTY GUIDELINES  
RESOLUTION 

 
Date: June 16, 2022 
 
WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemption is within the 
purview of the city council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the principal residence of persons, who the Assessor and Board of 
Review determines by reason of poverty, to be unable to contribute to the public 
charge, is eligible for exemption in whole or in part from taxation under MCL 
211.7u.: and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 211.7u., the City of Evart adopts the following 
guidelines for the Assessor and Board of Review to implement: 
 

A. The guidelines shall include but not be limited to the specific income and 
assets level of the claimant and all persons residing in the household, 
including any property tax credit returns, filed in the current or immediately 
preceding year; 
 

B. To be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis: 
 
1) Be an owner of, and occupy as a principal residence, the property for 

which an exemption is requested. 
 

2) File a completed City of Evart Property Exemption Application with the 
Assessor Board of Review, accompanied by all documentation that is 
required and/or listed in the application. 

 
 

3) Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification, if 
requested. 
 

4) Produce a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the 
property, for which an exemption is requested if requested.  

 
 

5) Meet the federal poverty income guidelines, as defined and determined 
annually by the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services, or alternative guidelines adopted by City Council. (Alternative 
guidelines shall not require less income to qualify for the poverty 
exemption than the Federal guidelines require). 
 



 

6) Meet the asset levels set by the City Council. In order to be considered 
for tax exemption under MCL 211.7u, the value of all additional assets 
shall not exceed the levels established by the City Council as outlined 
in the City of Evart Poverty Exemption Application. All asset 
information must be completed in full. The Board of Review and/or 
Assessor may request additional information and verification of assets 
if deemed necessary. The Board of Review may reject any application 
if assets are not properly defined. 

 
 

7) The application for an exemption shall be filed after January 1, but no 
later than one day prior to the last day of the Board of Review. 
 

8) Any additional eligibility requirements as determined by City Council: 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
That the assessor and Board of Review shall follow the above stated policy and 
federal guidelines in granting or denying an exemption,  
 
Motion made by _______________, seconded by _______________ to adopt 
this Resolution 2022-09.  
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
YEAS: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
Adopted this 20th day of June 2022 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Chris Emerick, Mayor 
 

______________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 
 



Locate File: G >City Council >Letters to Council 

 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:   Pepper Lockhart, City Manager 
Date:  June 15, 2022 
Re:  Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) Liability Insurance & 

Accident Fund Workers Compensation Renewal Policies 2022-2023 
 
For the Agenda of June 20, 2022 
_________________________________________________________________________   
Background. Annually city council approves our liability insurance policy along with our worker’s 
compensation policy. Both proposed policies are attached as a memo. We will receive an 
amended proposal with the removal of item #14 since we just sold this property.  
 
Issues & Questions Specified  
MMRMA’s cost of coverage for 2022-2023= $49,273- (net asset distribution and state pool loss 
fund distribution $7,493) = $41,780 
 
Accident Fund’s cost of coverage for worker’s compensation for 2022-2023 is $17,888. 
 
Both renewal proposals are comparable to last year’s costs considering the claims we have had. 
We have a great working relationship with the Lighthouse Group, MMRMA, and the Accident 
Fund.  
 
Alternatives.  

N/A 
 
Financial Impact 
All costs have been accounted for in the 2022-2023 annual budget. 
 
Recommendation 
I am seeking permission to sign both renewal proposals with the removal of item #14 since we 
just sold the property. 
 
Attachments.  
1. MMRMA Renewal Proposal 
2. Accident Fund Worker’s Compensation Renewal Proposal 
 
 

 









































AGENDA REPORT 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:  Dustin Moma, Director of Public Works  
Date:  June 15, 2022 
Re: Possible Assumption of Army Static Display Equipment at Guyton Park  

 
For the Agenda of June 20, 2022 
 
Background:  
The No. 2401 - 1944 Pullman Standard 3-inch Carriage Gun currently located at Guyton Park has 
historically been maintained and certified by the Evart VFW.  We have been approached by the VFW to 
see if the City of Evart would be willing to take on that responsibility now as they are no longer able to 
do it.   
 
Issues & Questions Specified:   
Maintenance would entail occasional painting due to weather wear and tear and possibly repairs to 
failing parts and pieces.  Because it was originally provided by the US Army as a static display, there is a 
requirement by the US Army to certify the location and condition of this equipment on an annual basis.  
The Certification document is attached for your information and review. 
 
Alternatives:  Do nothing.  At some point there would be potential for the US Army to remove it from 
the park. 
 
Financial Impact:  If approved there would be minimal costs for upkeep to the piece of equipment that 
would be paid from ____________. 
 
Recommendation:   
My recommendation would be to assume the responsibility of maintaining this piece of military 
equipment that has been in our community for many years.  And if approved, I recommend Council 
authorize City Manager to execute all necessary documentation required to facilitate the certification 
process with the US Army.  
 
Attachments: 
Annual Certification of Army Static Display Equipment -Form ADPO S-1 











AGENDA REPORT 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:  Dustin Moma, Director of Public Works  
Date:  June 15, 2022 
Re: Request to approve purchase of truck bed for one Water/Sewer truck 

 
For the Agenda of June 20, 2022 
 
Background: The previous water/sewer vehicle had a truck box.  When the new 2020 truck was 
purchased the previous city manager told the water department, they would get at least one truck box.  
Since COVID, this item was never revisited.  
 
Issues & Questions Specified:  The attached quote is for a truck utility bed that can be transferred to 
another water/sewer vehicle if the vehicle it is originally attached to becomes unusable for some 
reason.  Our vehicles currently have a usable life span of about 10 – 12 years.  This would allow for 
secure storage of most of the equipment and tools that are needed during a typical workday.  Currently 
employee load and unload tools daily or has to go back to the shop anytime a tool is needed that has 
not been put on the truck for some reason. 
 
Alternatives:  Do nothing. 
 
 
Financial Impact:  If approved, the cost to purchase this truck bed would be $18,985.00 plus $1,125.00 if 
you choose to include option #1.  These funds would be paid from ________________________. 
 
Recommendation:  Purchase truck bed as quoted. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Quote from Truck & Trailer Specialties 







CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/5Page
:

06/16/2022 03:25 PM
User: LISA
DB: City Of Evart

CHECK DATE FROM 06/07/2022 - 06/20/2022
Banks: 751

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

216.67 202803.000INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICESBAIRD, COTTER & BISHOP PC39132*75106/20/2022

242.43 265921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART39133*#75106/20/2022

43.74 301921.000UTILITIES

62.68 442921.000UTILITIES

348.85 CHECK 751 39133 TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

72.11 301921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY39135*#75106/20/2022

108.13 440921.000UTILITIES

180.24 CHECK 751 39135 TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

22.58 265801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC39137*#75106/20/2022

5.98 269740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE39139*#75106/20/2022

59.99 441740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

24.99 441740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

57.98 441740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

25.00 441930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

10.99 444740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

184.93 CHECK 751 39139 TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

175.00 269740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESMORGAN COMPOSTING, INC.39142#75106/20/2022

70.00 269740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

175.00 444740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

150.00 444740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

175.00 444740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

745.00 CHECK 751 39142 TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

129.00 441801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #23939144*#75106/20/2022

10,195.82 526801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

10,324.82 CHECK 751 39144 TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

120.00 444740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESRESOURCE RENTAL CENTER3914575106/20/2022

10,940.00 440740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSANTA'S LIGHT CREW3914675106/20/2022

43.71 301930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39147*#75106/20/2022

29.43 440930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/5Page
:

06/16/2022 03:25 PM
User: LISA
DB: City Of Evart

CHECK DATE FROM 06/07/2022 - 06/20/2022
Banks: 751

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

55.71 441930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

128.85 CHECK 751 39147 TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

2.29 265930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39148*#75106/20/2022

187.00 301840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGSPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL3914975106/20/2022

450.55 242801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESWILLIAMS & WORKS, INC.3915075106/20/2022

102.19 265900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION39151*#75106/20/2022

1,778.95 448921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY916(E)*#75106/20/2022

76.75 203860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESDUNCAN, JENNIFER918(A)75106/20/2022

30.42 191860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESFIEBIG, KATHY919(A)#75106/20/2022

35.10 215860.000TRAVEL EXPENSES

65.52 CHECK 751 919(A) TOTAL FOR FUND 101:

688.26 301861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.920(A)*#75106/20/2022

3.45 441860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESTUPPER, VICTORIA922(A)*#75106/20/2022

26,566.90 Total for fund 101 GENERAL FUND

Fund: 207 OTHER PARKS/RECREATION FUND

288.56 751921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART39133*#75106/20/2022

288.56 Total for fund 207 OTHER PARKS/RECREATION FUND

Fund: 208 RIVERSIDE CAMPGROUND FUND

90.93 757921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART39133*#75106/20/2022

1.49 757740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE39139*#75106/20/2022

1.49 757740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

2.98 757740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

4.97 757930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

10.93 CHECK 751 39139 TOTAL FOR FUND 208:

14.98 757930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39147*#75106/20/2022

116.84 Total for fund 208 RIVERSIDE CAMPGROUND FUND



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/5Page
:

06/16/2022 03:25 PM
User: LISA
DB: City Of Evart

CHECK DATE FROM 06/07/2022 - 06/20/2022
Banks: 751

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 209 CEMETERY FUND

7.67 276930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEHOMETOWN HARDWARE39139*#75106/20/2022

62.14 276801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #23939144*#75106/20/2022

29.98 276930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39147*#75106/20/2022

39.40 276930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

69.38 CHECK 751 39147 TOTAL FOR FUND 209:

31.72 276930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39148*#75106/20/2022

170.91 Total for fund 209 CEMETERY FUND

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

216.66 202803.000INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICESBAIRD, COTTER & BISHOP PC39132*75106/20/2022

166.94 538921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY39135*#75106/20/2022

22.58 537801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC39137*#75106/20/2022

2.20 538740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE39139*#75106/20/2022

13.99 539740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

16.19 CHECK 751 39139 TOTAL FOR FUND 590:

85.00 538801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMILES, GREG3914175106/20/2022

45.00 538930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

130.00 CHECK 751 39141 TOTAL FOR FUND 590:

16.66 537900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPIONEER GROUP39143*#75106/20/2022

57.50 538801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #23939144*#75106/20/2022

36.58 538930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39148*#75106/20/2022

6.08 538930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

42.66 CHECK 751 39148 TOTAL FOR FUND 590:

102.19 537900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION39151*#75106/20/2022



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/5Page
:

06/16/2022 03:25 PM
User: LISA
DB: City Of Evart

CHECK DATE FROM 06/07/2022 - 06/20/2022
Banks: 751

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

113.46 538850.000COMMUNICATIONSLINGO917(E)*#75106/20/2022

3.45 537860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESTUPPER, VICTORIA922(A)*#75106/20/2022

888.29 Total for fund 590 SEWER FUND

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

216.67 202803.000INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICESBAIRD, COTTER & BISHOP PC39132*75106/20/2022

8,385.00 546732.000CHLORINE/TREATMENT CHEMICALSELHORN ENGINEERING CO3913675106/20/2022

22.59 545801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC39137*#75106/20/2022

2,262.34 547740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHACH COMPANY3913875106/20/2022

2.19 546740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE39139*#75106/20/2022

13.17 547740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

15.36 CHECK 751 39139 TOTAL FOR FUND 591:

16.66 545900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPIONEER GROUP39143*#75106/20/2022

57.50 546801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #23939144*#75106/20/2022

26.50 545740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSMITH LUMBER CO39147*#75106/20/2022

81.32 547740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

107.82 CHECK 751 39147 TOTAL FOR FUND 591:

60.05 546930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO39148*#75106/20/2022

38.17 547740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES

98.22 CHECK 751 39148 TOTAL FOR FUND 591:

102.20 545900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION39151*#75106/20/2022

28.51 546921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY916(E)*#75106/20/2022

113.47 546850.000COMMUNICATIONSLINGO917(E)*#75106/20/2022

1,882.43 546730.000OUTSOURCED TESTINGTRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES921(A)75106/20/2022



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/5Page
:

06/16/2022 03:25 PM
User: LISA
DB: City Of Evart

CHECK DATE FROM 06/07/2022 - 06/20/2022
Banks: 751

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

3.45 545860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESTUPPER, VICTORIA922(A)*#75106/20/2022

13,312.22 Total for fund 591 WATER FUND

Fund: 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

1,315.64 599970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDDEERE CREDIT, INC3913475106/20/2022

1,631.56 599861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.920(A)*#75106/20/2022

2,947.20 Total for fund 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

  '#'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE DEPARTMENT
  '*'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE FUND

44,290.92 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 06/07/2022 to 06/20/2022 

06/16/2022 03:28 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 2

Cleared826.780.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD673975006/15/2022

Cleared376.280.00450.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD674075006/15/2022

Cleared698.450.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD674175006/15/2022

Cleared169.420.00192.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD674275006/15/2022

Cleared418.620.00504.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD674375006/15/2022

Cleared63.440.0072.00 HUBBARD, EMMA M         DD674475006/15/2022

Cleared274.500.00315.00 HYDEN, JESSE          DD674575006/15/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD674675006/15/2022

Cleared612.710.00946.40 MARTIN, DALE          DD674775006/15/2022

Cleared92.510.00105.00 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD674875006/15/2022

Cleared551.320.00680.00 MILLER, JEFFERY A         DD674975006/15/2022

Cleared1,034.260.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD675075006/15/2022

Cleared726.000.001,112.84 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD675175006/15/2022

Cleared589.090.00760.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD675275006/15/2022

Cleared635.100.00757.03 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD675375006/15/2022

Cleared435.030.00525.00 SHERMAN, GREGG A         DD675475006/15/2022

Cleared199.130.00215.63 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD675575006/15/2022

Cleared81.400.0092.40 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD675675006/15/2022

Cleared748.800.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD675775006/15/2022

Cleared535.930.00798.94 ZINGER, ADAM          DD675875006/15/2022

Cleared693.360.00946.40 MARTIN, DALE          DD675975006/15/2022

Open0.002,960.912,960.91FEDERAL 941          EFT79975006/15/2022

Open0.00239.91239.91FEDERAL 941          EFT80075006/15/2022

Cleared956.030.001,156.61 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD673875006/10/2022

Open0.00248.08248.08FEDERAL 941          EFT79875006/10/2022

Cleared826.790.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD671275006/08/2022

Cleared306.060.00360.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD671375006/08/2022

Cleared698.450.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD671475006/08/2022

Cleared169.430.00192.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD671575006/08/2022

Cleared418.640.00504.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD671675006/08/2022



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 06/07/2022 to 06/20/2022 

06/16/2022 03:28 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 2

Cleared84.580.0096.00 HUBBARD, EMMA M         DD671775006/08/2022

Cleared338.540.00388.50 HYDEN, JESSE          DD671875006/08/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD671975006/08/2022

Cleared612.720.00946.40 MARTIN, DALE          DD672075006/08/2022

Cleared95.800.00108.75 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD672175006/08/2022

Cleared447.820.00544.00 MILLER, JEFFERY A         DD672275006/08/2022

Cleared1,034.250.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD672375006/08/2022

Cleared960.510.001,462.22 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD672475006/08/2022

Cleared589.080.00760.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD672575006/08/2022

Cleared609.050.00744.28 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD672675006/08/2022

Cleared271.010.00315.00 SHERMAN, GREGG A         DD672775006/08/2022

Cleared143.370.00155.25 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD672875006/08/2022

Cleared105.590.00119.85 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD672975006/08/2022

Cleared723.680.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD673075006/08/2022

Cleared493.980.00743.20 ZINGER, ADAM          DD673175006/08/2022

Open0.002,928.812,928.81FEDERAL 941          EFT79475006/08/2022

46Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

22,191.096,377.7135,922.61Number of Checks:  046Totals:























 

 

 
 

 
 
 
May 23, 2022 
 
Ms. Pepper Lockhart, City Manager 
City of Evart  
200 S. Main Street  
Evart, MI 49631 
 
Dear Ms. Lockhart: 
 
This letter presents our qualifications to assist the City of Evart with an update to its Master Plan 
Update. This letter offers our services based on our experience in West Michigan, and we are 
confident that our approach is an efficient and productive process. In addition, our longstanding 
presence in the region demonstrates that we have a keen understanding of the area and some 
of the issues the community is facing. 
 
We understand that the City seeks an update to its Master Plan that provides a thoughtful, 
forward-thinking vision for land use, supported by its residents and recent development trends. 
We envision a plan as an approachable and user-friendly document that can be easily 
interpreted by the general public while also providing thoughtful guidance to the City for the 
development, redevelopment, and preservation of land. 
 
The input of City staff and policymakers will be critical to a successful effort. The updated 
Master Plan will reflect the desires of residents throughout the community, represent diverse 
interests and priorities, and ensure that the City is well-positioned for years into the future.  
 
Our approach is fruitful yet mindful of the City’s resources. We are open to further tailoring and 
refining our approach as desired. The balance of this letter describes the general process of 
updating a Master Plan. 

WORK SCOPE: MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

We propose to follow the process outlined below to create a new Master Plan. We will ensure 
that the planning process meets the requirements of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act and 
sound planning practices. Please note that meeting schedules will follow the regular Planning 
Commission schedule with a steering committee established by the City for most of the planning 
process. Unless otherwise instructed, we will not plan to schedule meetings outside of regular 
Commission meeting times.  

  



Ms. Pepper Lockhart 
May 23, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Phase 1. Kick-off. The initial step will be to formally meet with City staff and the Planning 
Commission to kick off the project. This meeting will address housekeeping issues such as 
timeframe, milestones, and expectations. The purpose of the project kick-off meeting will be to 
discuss the goals of the planning process, the Plan’s structure, and any interest in a 
comprehensive community engagement effort. We will work with the City to provide relevant 
updates, reports, maps, and surveys as the planning process progresses. 

Phase 2. Data Development and Analysis. The second phase begins to build the foundation 
of the Master Plan. Using information gathered from our knowledge of the City, Osceola County, 
the US Census Bureau, the State of Michigan, and other organizations, we will develop a 
current assessment of the City of Evart, including maps, charts, infographics, and tables that 
effectively outline current conditions in the City in the context of its neighbors and similar 
communities in the Osceola County and greater West Michigan region. Focus areas will include 
demographic trends, thorough housing study, recreation, land use, trails, traffic patterns, 
utilities, and economic development. This analysis will provide an objective, data-driven 
foundation for the Plan adopted in 2017. 

Public engagement is critical to the planning process because it helps identify the community’s 
vision for the future and explore a range of issues the City may face. If a public participation 
strategy is chosen as directed by the City. We will work with City staff on defining the desired 
formats, but several options include the following:  

Option 1: Community open house(s) to talk to City residents and leaders about community 
issues and opportunities in a drop-in format;  

Option 2: Online community survey designed to allow for broad public engagement;  

Option 3: Mail-in community survey designed to allow for overall public engagement; 

Option 4: Public visioning meeting(s) to provide an interactive opportunity for the public to 
envision its desired future. 

Option 5: Pop-up engagement meetings that go out into the public and speak with the 
residents and visitors in their element.  

The purpose of these community participation efforts will be to gather information and engage 
citizens in the planning process. Marking up a map, drawing, or completing a survey will allow 
citizens to be a part of the process. This phase will conclude with a summary report that will 
provide citizens and officials with a summary of the engagement efforts and input received. 

  



Ms. Pepper Lockhart 
May 23, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Phase 3. Draft Master Plan Update. The third phase takes the desires of the public, 
stakeholders, and local officials, coupled with the best planning and design practices and 
delivers complete narratives, mapping, goals and objectives, and strategies for implementation. 
Detail-rich, intuitive graphics will accompany the text making the Plan visually appealing and 
easy to comprehend. Goals, principles, actions, and a review and edit to the future land use 
map and Plan will be based on valuable input from the second phase. During this period, 
meetings will be held with the Planning Commission to develop and refine goals and objectives 
and future land use mapping designations and narratives. The draft of the Master Plan will also 
be presented to the Planning Commission during this phase before the preparation of the formal 
draft in phase four. 

Phase 4. Review and Adoption. The final phase is the formal review and approval process. 
We will review and incorporate comments gathered during the third phase and prepare the 
updated and fully assembled Master Plan draft for consideration by the Planning Commission. 
From this point, the Planning Commission will request authorization from the City Council to 
distribute the Plan for the state-required 42-day review. After the review, the Planning 
Commission will hold an official public hearing and recommend approval to the City Board. After 
a recommendation by the Planning Commission, the City Board will review and approve the 
Plan. 

STAFF AND PROFESSIONAL FEES 

This assignment will be led by Bradley Kotrba, AICP, and Tanya DeOliveira, AICP. Mr. Kotrba 
has nearly eight years of experience providing planning services for communities across 
Michigan and Georgia and regularly updates or develops new Master Plans, Zoning 
Ordinances, and Parks & Recreation Plans for client communities. Ms. DeOliveira has over ten 
years of experience leading, writing, and implementing transportation, non-motorized, 
comprehensive plans, projects, and studies. Other professional staff will work on the project as 
needed, but Mr. Kotrba and Ms. DeOliveira will oversee the entirety of the assignment. 

We expect that the fees for this assignment will range from $15,000 to $20,000 depending on 
the level of effort desired and the scope of any optional public engagement process [Note: If a 
mail-out survey is selected, the cost of service can be as high as an additional $10,000 - 
$12,000 for drafting, assembling, printing, mailing, return mailing, and analysis]. Therefore, we 
encourage selecting at least one public engagement technique, though the City may choose as 
many, or as few, as desired.  

We are grateful for the invitation to submit this proposal. Please feel free to call or email us if 
you have any questions regarding our services; we look forward to discussing our approach with 
you further. We have included professional resumes from the planning group, and a few 
examples of Master Plans we have completed for similar communities. 

  



Ms. Pepper Lockhart 
May 23, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

 
We are happy to discuss this proposal further should you have questions. If this proposal is 
acceptable to you, please sign in the box below which will amend our existing professional 
services agreement (PSA) to incorporate the terms of this proposal. Andy Moore, AICP is an 
Executive with the firm and the Planning Group Lead, and is authorized to commit the firm to the 
terms of this proposal 

Thank you again for thinking of the planners at Williams & Works to provide planning services to 
the City. If you have any questions about our services or our proposed arrangement, please feel 
free to contact me at any time.  

Sincerely, 

Williams & Works 
 
  [via email] 
 
Bradley S. Kotrba, AICP 
 
c: Tanya DeOliveira, AICP 

Accepted by City of Evart 
 

Signed   

Name   

Title   

Date   

 

 









 
 

Evart Police Department 

Monthly Report 
 

 

Trainings 
 

Officer Chad Wilson completed a weeklong training on Forensic Interviewing training in Grayling.  

 

Cadette Jesse Wilson completed all mandatory levels of Security Awareness Training. 

 

Administrative Assistant Teresa Swift-Eckert completed the Basic Lein Operator Training course as 

a refresher to prepare for renewing her LEIN Certification. 

 

 

 

 

Department Roster 
 

Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

Full Time Police Officer Chad Wilson 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Cadette  Jesse Wilson 39-03 

 

 

Administrative Staff 

Name Title 

Teresa Swift-Eckert Administrative Assistant 

Rose Woosley Administrative Assistant 

Emma Hubbard Office Assistant 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 2022 



   

 TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 47 

Higgins, JJ 196 

Wilson, Chad 130 

TOTAL: 373 
 

 

   

 ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

Wilson, Chad 2 

Higgins, JJ 0 

TOTAL: 2 
 

 

   

 ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 8 

Assist Evart Public School 3 

Assist Fire 1 

Assist MIC Unit 1 

Assist MSP 1 

Assist OCSD 10 

Assist Police Agency 2 

TOTAL: 26 
 

 

 

 ACCIDENTS  

TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - PD 3 

Accident - PI 1 

TOTAL: 4 
 

   

     

 TRAFFIC 

VIOLATIONS 

 

OFFICER Traffic 

Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Stop 

Citation 

Traffic Stop Verbal 

Warning 

Beam, John Jr. 3 1 1 

Higgins, JJ 0 1 3 

Wilson, Chad 0 1 1 

TOTAL: 3 3 5 
 

  

  

 

   



 ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS   

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

Beam, John Jr. Ordinance Violation - Warning 3 

Higgins, JJ Ordinance Violation - Warning 1 

TOTAL: 4 
 

 

 

 



 

DDA/MMS MeeƟng Agenda—June 14, 2022  1 

Evart Downtown Development Authority 

Chair, Alan Bengry 
 Treasurer, Lynn Salinas 

Jason O’Dell 
Erica Henry 

Vice-Chair, Molly Cataldo  
Secretary, June-Marie Essner  

Sandra Szeliga 
Director, Todd Bruggema 

City Manager, Pepper Lockhart 
 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St. 
Evart, MI 49631 

www.evart.org 

REGULAR DDA MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, June 14, 2022 @ 8:00AM 

 
The Regular Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located at  

200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631 
 
 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Introduction of Guests 

4. Citizens’ Comments 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Approval Regular Minutes – May 10, 2022 

7. Vendor’s List - May 2022 

8. President's Comments 

9. Director's Comments 

10. City Manager's Comments 

11. Committee updates  

Economic Vitality 

a. Farmers Market Report 

b. Pop-Up 

c. Business Recruitment Primer-draft 

 
Design 

a. SBEI 

b. Benches/Bike Racks 

c. Way Finding Signage 

d. Design projects to consider 

Sound Garden 
Public Bike Repair Station—Volunteers pledged to work on project 
Selfie Photo Spot(s) 

Promotion 

a. Shop Local 

b. Summer Arts Series 

MACC Grant Reapply  



 

DDA/MMS MeeƟng Agenda—June 14, 2022  2 

C. Point Person (needs to be able to help with set up, take down be available during performance for any  
issues or questions which may arise.) 

i. Bob Marshall Band July 2, 2022 
ii. Jake Slater August 20, 2022 
iii. Sand Bobs August 27, 2022 at the EFM: A. Hunter  

Other performers for balance of 2022 funds 

Organization 

a. Board Recruiting 
b. Volunteers 

12. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 

b. New Business Welcome 

c. Main Street Self-Assessment Tool 

d. Direction/Projects Prioritized 

e. National Main Street Conference update 

f. Main Street Pledges 

g. 2022-2023 Budget  

13. New Business 

a.  Rex Rozanski, Downtown Façade/Building Improvement Grant 

b.   

c.   

d.   

e.   

f.   

14. Citizens’ Comments 

15. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
DDAMMS Meeting Minutes – May 10, 2022 

EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday May 10, 2022 8:00 AM 

200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

  

1.  Meeting called to order by Bengry at 8:02am  
  

2. Attendance: Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Erica Henry, Jason 
O’Dell, Todd Bruggema  
Absent: Shannon Schmidt, Sandy Szeliga, Pepper Lockhart 

  
3. Guests: Angela Hunter, Jennie Duncan 

4.  Citizen Comments: None  

5. Approval of agenda as presented.  

6. Approval of Minutes: Moved Salinas by, supported by Cataldo for approval of April 12, 2022 
Regular Meeting Minutes with corrections; Works and Works should read Williams and Works, Van 
Burgle should read Van Burgel.  

 Ayes:  7      Nays:  0    Result:  Carried  
  
7. Approval of Vendor List: Moved by Cataldo, supported by Henry for approval of Vendor List for 

April 2022 in the amount of $7,511.39 and EFM amount of $20.00.  
 Ayes:  7      Nays:  0    Result:  Carried  

  
8. President’s Comments: None.  
  
9. Director’s Comments: Director Bruggema is attending the MS Conference next week in Richmond, 

VA. Working on finding a multi-use space for a bakery.  Council approved lights on the R2T Bridge 
year-round, 24 hours. 

  
10. City Manager’s Comments: None. 
  
11. Committee Updates   

Economic Vitality  
a. Farmers Market:  A Hunter completed Sr Project Fresh training.  They will not be providing any 
required signage, so the market will need to print and laminate those.  WIC Fresh is starting late.  The 
Evart GFWC will be setting up the 3rd Saturday of each month.  Mecosta Osceola Substance 
Awareness Coalition (MOSAC) will be coming to the market.  August 27 is set for a R2T bike ride 
between the Farwell Market and EFM. Registration fee is $20. Hunter would like to email local 
business for sponsorship of gifts or coupons to put into the packet for each registrant.  This will help 
promote Evart and Farwell’s downtown.  R. Sanders, MSU Extension, will be at the market August 
27th also.  Hunter mentioned she would like to do an I Spy style game with a prize for kids visiting the 
market.  



2 
DDAMMS Meeting Minutes – May 10, 2022 

b.  Pop-Up:  Bruggema had an interested person who did not show up for their meeting.  4 C’s 
Cookies will be renting in June.  Bruggema will be meeting with Chris Elliott from Green Gold 
Diner regarding the façade grant. 

c.  Business Recruitment Primer: Waiting for recommendations on the draft.  
  
Design  
a. SBEI: Waiting final report.  
b. Benches/Bike Racks: Ready for powder coating.  
c. Way Finding Signage:  No new action at this time.   
  
Promotion  
a. Shop Local  
b. Summer Arts Series: Bob Marshall Band Scheduled for July 2. 2022 @ Evart Depot 7pm-9pm.  

Jake Slater Scheduled for August 20, 2022 @ Evart Depot after 5:30pm.   Sand Bobs preform at 
the EFM on Aug 27.  

c. 6th and Main are part of Bike night on June 16, 2022.  
  
Organization  
a. Board Recruiting  
b. Volunteers  

  
13. Old Business  

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan: 90% of the document has been converted 
to a Word document.  Williams and Works sent a revised contract. 
Motion by Cataldo, supported by Salinas to accept the revised contract with Williams and Works 
to work on the Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan for a maximum $11,700.  
Ayes:  7    Nays:  0    Result:  Carried  

b. New Business Welcome: No new action  
c. MS Accreditation Process: Board went through first 3 parts on the Main Street Self-Assessment 

Tool after new business completed so guest could leave if they wished. 
d. Nain Street Small Business Grant for Technology: No one applied. 
e. DDA Board Volunteer Self-Assessment: Most have been received. 
f. Direction/Projects Prioritized: No action taken 
g. T Mobile Grant: Lockhart is reviewing to see if renovation updates and lighting for the skate park 

would be allowed. 
   

14. New Business   

a. Main Street Self-Assessment Tool: See c. in old business.  
b. Pop-up lease and interest update: Addressed during Economic Vitality reporting.  
c. Sesquicentennial Light Pole Banners: 50 have been sponsored to date.  
d. Green Gold Diner Façade Grant meeting: Addressed during Economic Vitality reporting.  
e. National Main Street Conference: Bruggema requested input on which sessions to attend.  He is 

looking forward to meeting Michigan’s and the National leadership in person. 
f. Main Street Pledges:  Salinas and Bruggema are meeting to work on this. 



3 
DDAMMS Meeting Minutes – May 10, 2022 

g. Bike Rack Paint Color:  Follow the colors identified for our branding and communities desire for 
more color downtown. 

h. Budget Amendment: 
Moved by Cataldo, supported by O’Dell to approve the budget amendments for the DDA and 
EFM. 
Ayes:  7    Nays:  0    Result:  Carried 

i. 2022-2023 Budget Worksheet: Duncan reviewed the original 2021-2022 budget and the actual 
2021-2022 budget after amendments.  There was discussion regarding food assistance programs 
used at the farmers market and the best way to report those.  Clarification on how to report and 
record that in the chart of accounts is to be sought from the accountants. 
  

15. Citizen’s Comments:  None  
  
16. Adjournment: Motion made by Salinas, supported by Essner to adjourn at 9:57am.  

Ayes:  7    Nays:  0    Result:  Carried  

  

  

Respectfully submitted, June-Marie Essner, secretary  



 



Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

Fire Board Meeting 

May 10, 2022 @ 4:30 PM 

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Hammer at 4:36 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  Sherri Bancroft – Osceola Township, Bev Mills – Sylvan Township, 
Diane Brackett – Orient Township, Gary Hammer – Evart  Township, Pepper 
Lockhart – City of Evart, Terry Pritchard – Sylvan Township, 

GUESTS: Shane Helmer, Angie Cushman, Travis Douglas, Bev Mills. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: None 

MOTION BY ORIENT, 2ND BY OSCEOLA TWP to approve the agenda as presented. 
MOTION PASSED. 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA, 2nd by ORIENT TWP to approve the consent agenda with 
the approval of the payment of bills, treasurers report, and April 12, 2022 
regular meeting minutes. MOTION PASSED. 

General Checking, $86,071.79, High Yield Savings, $346,452.55, Grand Total 
$432,529.00. 

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. Paid Monthly Staff Update: Shane let the board know that the 
paid staff is still going quite well, and that the guys are still doing 
well with scheduling.  Shane will provide a 6 month update next 
month on all the calls and times and payroll with a written report 
and graphs. Nothing but positive feedback so far for having the 
staff here and available to continue. 



 

2. Engine 9 Update: Shane stated that they have finally found the 
issues with Engine 9, and found that without having mud flaps, 
there is an electrical box that was not covered and with driving 
the truck in mud, water etc, and it corroded and shorted things 
out to make the truck function incorrectly.  The programming also 
has a memory switch, so every time that the dump button was 
pushed, it would remember that, and dump when the truck was 
turned on, it would dump. That switch will be changed, and a new 
box was built for the wiring, and mud flaps are being installed 
soon. All work was under warranty so no cost to us. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Budget Amendments: There was a budget amendment sheet 
provided to each board member, and discussed. 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TWP. 2ND BY ORIENT TWP to approve the budget 
amendments as presented.  

EVART TWP – YES 
CITY OF EVART – YES 
SYLVAN TWP – YES 
ORIENT TWP – YES 
OSCEOLA TWP – YES 
MOTION PASSED. 
 

2. Monthly Statistics: Shane presented the board with graphs for 
each of the townships, and the month as a whole for each of the 
townships. 

 
Citizens Comments: None 



Fire Chief Report: USDA Grant $150,712.00 which they will give about $100,000 
in which we will owe $65,00 left to pay on the gear. Then we can go on to another 
grant. We are looking to do a generator for the department, and conjunction with 
the PD possibly. Shane also stated that we have a DNR grant in process right now, 
just waiting on confirmation. 
Shane has been asked about Dry Hydrants by Evart Twp., which discussion was 
held. 
Air packs are to be inspected this May 2022, and will be out of warranty 5-31-
2022. So Shane would like to keep the board informed that air packs will soon 
need to be replaced.  
The gear has been shipped and will be here within 5-10 days. 
The air bottles will be hydro tested this month, and this will be the last test for 
these bottles. 
 
Next Board Meeting: June 14, 2022 @ 4:30pm  

MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED AT A FUTURE BOARD MEETING.  

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP, to adjourn the meeting @ 5:37pm 
MOTION PASSED 

 

Angela Cushman 

Administrative Assistant 

Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

 
 
 

 


	9d12d07b-458d-4964-b17c-b50fd7b60f59.pdf
	Williams & Works
	Accepted by City of Evart

	d8bcf45c-cdc5-40ab-90c5-f49db5ec3b53.pdf
	2022 DDAMMS 5.10 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	1.  Meeting called to order by Bengry at 8:02am
	4.  Citizen Comments: None
	Economic Vitality
	Design
	Promotion
	Organization
	13. Old Business
	14. New Business
	15. Citizen’s Comments:  None



